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1) Roll Call  

 

2) Minutes for Meeting July 27, 2023  

 

3) Financials for June and July 2023  

 

4) Resolutions for Consideration: 

 

I. Final Resolution – 155 Elliot LLC  

 

II. Inducement Resolution – Hampshire Management Company Number 30 LLC (1111 Central 

Park Ave)  

 

III. Resolution Authorizing Extension of Sales Tax Exemption Benefits Period for Brooks 

Shopping Centers LLC  

 

IV. Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap Allocation to YEDC 

 

V. Resolution Authorizing Sales Tax Exemption Benefits Extension for Miroza T3 LLC 

 

 

5) Other Business/and Any Other Business that Comes Before the Board 

 

6) Legal Updates    

 

7) Adjournment 
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 MS. ANDERSON:  Hello, everyone,
3 good afternoon.  Sorry for the
4 delays.  Welcome to the IDA meeting
5 for July 27th, 2023.  So we're going
6 to first start with the roll call.
7 MR. OOMMEN:  Marlyn Anderson?
8 MS. ANDERSON:  Present.
9 MR. OOMMEN:  Cecile Singer?
10 MS. SINGER:  Present.
11 MR. OOMMEN:  Henry Djonbalaj?
12 MR. GJONAJ:  Present.
13 MR. OOMMEN:  Victor Gjonaj?
14 MR. DJONBALAJ:  Here.
15 MR. OOMMEN:  Mayor Mike Spano,
16 Melissa Nacerino and Roberto Espiritu
17 are excused.
18 Madam Chair, we have a quorum.
19 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you very
20 much.
21 So I'm going to move down to
22 the next item, which is approval for
23 the minutes of May 25th, 2023.
24 Would anyone like to make a
25 motion to approve the minutes?
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2
3 seconded by Henry.
4 All in favor?
5 (A chorus of ayes.)
6 MS. ANDERSON:  Any negatives?
7 Hearing none, the minutes have
8 been approved.
9 The next item on the agenda is
10 financials for May 2023.
11 MR. OOMMEN:  For the month of
12 May, we did not receive any agency
13 fees.  Our money market saving
14 account generated $12,482 in interest
15 income.  Our cash on hand at the end
16 of May was $4.5 million.  Thank you.
17 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Siby.
18 So resolutions for
19 consideration today.  We're going to
20 start with the Monastery Manor --
21 MS. MCGILL:  Take a vote on the
22 financials.
23 MS. ANDERSON:  Oh, financials,
24 we have to vote on.
25 Anyone like to make a motion?
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2
3
4 All in favor?
5 (A chorus of ayes.)
6 MS. ANDERSON:  Hearing none,
7 the item has been passed.
8 MS. MCGILL:  Resolutions for
9 consideration:  Our first item is a
10 final resolution for Monastery Manor
11 Associates.  We have Jim Veneruso
12 here to represent the project if
13 there are any specific questions, and
14 Michael Curti here is representing
15 the transaction.
16 MR. CURTI:  Thank you, Chair.
17 Before you is a resolution, a
18 final, authorizing resolution for the
19 existing IDA project at 2 Father
20 Finian Sullivan Drive, in the City of
21 Yonkers.
22 Just so the board is aware,
23 this is obviously an existing
24 project.
25 We've provided financial
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 assistance in the past.  The purpose
3 of providing the financial assistance
4 at this point is because the project
5 is refinancing and the lender, which
6 is Fannie Mae, is requiring that the
7 P.I.L.O.T be extended for a period of not
8 less than five years.  The request
9 from the applicant was a seven-year

10 extension with regard to the P.I.L.O.T,
11 so that is additional financial
12 assistance that is being provided to
13 the project.
14 The consideration for that is
15 that the project will continue to
16 remain being an affordable senior
17 development for that period of time.
18 There was a question that came
19 up during public hearing with regard
20 to who can reside in the premises,
21 whether it's available for City
22 workforce, also.
23 And so the response back from
24 the applicant is that it is a senior
25 building.  The only preferences are
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7
8
9 There is a mortgage recording

10 tax exemption because there will be a
11 mortgage issued as part of this, to
12 secure a loan that will be issued for
13 the refinancing purposes.  The amount
14 of the mortgage recording tax
15 exemption is $255,000.
16 Again, if there are any
17 questions, we'd be happy to answer.
18 MS. MCGILL:  We did perform a
19 fiscal impact analysis on this
20 project.  So as Michael Curti said,
21 the request was for a seven-year
22 P.I.L.O.T extension  and mortgage
23
24
25

recording tax abatement of $254,000. 
A result of providing these 
benefits, like Michael Curti said,
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for those seniors who are either 
homeless or, number two, have 
experienced some sort of adverse 
impact because of a natural disaster.

So if there's any further 
questions, Mr. Veneruso can speak to 
those items.
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9

10
11
12 that this project still provides
13 $3.03 of benefit to the City for
14 every dollar of benefit that we are
15 conveying to the project.  So the
16
17

recommendation is to approve the 
seven-year P.I.L.O.T and the mortgage

18 recording tax abatement.
19 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you,
20 Michael Curti.  Thank you, Jaime.
21 Any questions?
22 No questions?
23 Hearing none, would anyone like
24 to make a motion to approve the
25 resolution?
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again, is not only preserving
low-income senior housing, but also 
maintains a fiscal benefit to the 
City.

The additional seven years of 
the P.I.L.O.T were analyzed, and 
have been structured to exceed what 
the current pilot is, but still 
allowing the project to have 
benchmark returns.  The analysis 
demonstrated
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2
3
4 All in favor?
5 (A chorus of ayes.)
6 MS. ANDERSON:  Any negatives?
7 Hearing none, this item has
8 been passed.
9 MS. MCGILL:  Our next item that
10 was on the agenda that was published
11 will now be moving forward to next
12 month, so we will move on to the
13 third item, which is an inducement
14 resolution for 155 Elliot, LLC.  We do
15
16
17   My
18

have Moshe Blum here to represent 
the project.

MR. BLUM:  Good afternoon. 
name is  Moshe Blum.

19 I don't know if you know, but
20 today is a fast day, and I don't even
21 have my shoes on; we wear slippers
22 today, or Crocs.  But for the
23 importance of the project, I made my
24 effort to come down and represent the
25 project.
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 So as you know, this was a
3 synagogue going back years,
4 probably -- I'm not sure the years
5 when it got vacated -- and it was
6 abandoned for, I believe, many years.
7 This is at 155 Elliot.
8 Back in 2014, 2015, I bought
9 two small, small buildings in

10 Yonkers.  I kept it, somebody's
11 managing it.  And I didn't move
12 forward in the real estate industry,
13 I would call it, or development.
14 But 2019, the beginning of
15 2019, a friend of mine approached me
16 and says, "Since you are in
17 construction working for somebody,
18 you have experience, I have an idea.
19 I know the people on the board for
20 this congregation that own this
21 building, and it's vacant; it's doing
22 nothing.  Maybe I go have a meeting
23 with them."
24 Maybe it sounded like a dream,
25 but I was like, you know what?  I
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 know what I'm doing.  Maybe we should
3 redevelop it into apartments.
4 So the first thing I did, I
5 went down to a local architect here.
6 I don't know if you know him:  Julio.
7 I sat down with him.  I was
8 like, "This is what somebody
9 introduced to me.  I know it's

10 possible to do it, but I don't know
11 anything about zoning, I don't know
12 anything about what should be done.
13 Please, if you can explain to me if
14 it's doable or not."
15 So he checked the zoning, he
16 said, "It's residential zoning,
17 multi-family; you could do.  It would
18 be a lot of work."
19 I said, "I'm not scared of
20 work."
21 We went into contract together,
22 me and the other guy.  I didn't have
23 the money to buy it, but we went into
24 contract.
25 And we still needed AG
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3
4 I wanted to start working on plans,
5 but then COVID hit.  There was no
6 in-person meetings and it got delayed
7 from purchasing until we got
8 approvals, which was late 2020, make
9 the numbers.
10 In the meantime, this building
11 was a tax-exempt building that paid
12 no taxes, on a vacant lot, sitting in
13 a prime area.  It got out of not-for
14 profit, we started paying the full
15 assessed value for the building since
16 the day of closing, and we couldn't
17 get the  approvals.
18 I was like, almost every week
19 here, and crying to Julio.  I was
20 like, it was killing me.
21 We tried, we tried and pushed,
22 and then -- until finally, we got it
23 approved.
24 We took out another
25 construction loan on the project and
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approval, so we had time.  In the 
meantime, we got the AG approval and
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 we started doing construction.
3 This is the building before we
4 started construction.
5 Julio said, "You could change
6 the exterior but you're going to need
7 additional approvals."
8 I said, "I can't."
9 I'd rather pay a little bit

10 more to keep it as much as possible
11 for what it was, to not to change the
12 neighborhood or the street, for what
13 people are used to, and still got
14 some nice apartments inside.
15 So this was the old building,
16 what it looked like; this is what it
17 looks today.
18 Basically, the only thing
19 that's changed is the center piece,
20 which was the main entrance.  So we
21 put in windows to match up the other
22 floors because this part was higher.
23 Same thing on the bottom floor.  And
24 then this is the elevator.
25 We even kept all the windows,
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 we filled them with matching red
3 brick to put in windows, to make it
4 look the same, equal on both sides.
5 From a construction point, this
6 is a lot of extra money.  We could
7 have gone and just put bricks, not
8 put windows, side windows as well.  I
9 just don't have it in the picture,
10 but we put in a lot of money just to
11 keep it as nice as possible for what
12 it was.
13 This used to be the side
14 entrance.  As you can see, everything
15 here was redone, but matches -- still
16 matching -- to make it into a nice,
17 bigger opening.
18 This was a seven-foot door;
19 right now, we have eight-foot-five,
20 nicer building, opening doors.
21 Over here, you can see the
22 other windows, all fake windows.
23 This is all the elevator shaft
24 now.
25 So this is the side entrance,
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2 which is going to be the main
3 entrance.
4 And here, you can receive --
5 this used to have what you call the
6 church windows.  We filled it all in,
7 block work, brick work, matching.
8 It's not power-washed yet, so
9 you can still see a little bit of a
10 difference, but it's going to look
11 95 percent the same.  We just put in
12 windows, get them filled.  This used
13 to be all windows.
14 So this was a lot of money put
15 in just to keep it as much as
16 possible for what it was.
17 Here is what the inside looks
18 like today.
19 This is the one of the main
20 hallways, floor tile, wall tile,
21 paint didn't start yet.
22 This is the kitchen area.  You
23 can see nice tile in front of the
24 kitchen, black-splash tile matching
25 the floor, kitchen, granite counters,
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2 expensive, Canadian kitchens.
3 Same thing, each and every unit
4 is having their own hot water tank
5 inside the mechanical closet.
6 Same thing, kitchen.
7 This is the bathroom.
8 Fully-tiled floor, brand new
9 finishings, tile work, fully-tiled

10 wet wall, half tiled, the other wall,
11 where the vanity is going to go.
12 This is an overall -- just a
13 picture of what apartments look like.
14 This was the best I could get to.
15 Hardwood floors as well.  They
16 also put plastic, whatever.
17 So I understand you guys are
18 going to ask me why now.
19 Going back to 2019, the cost
20 that I estimated based on pricing was
21 with a million dollars -- almost a
22 million dollars less for what it is
23 now.
24 Since 2019 up to now, end of
25 2022, 2023, you all know it, it's not
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2
3
4 Number two, since the project
5 took me so long to get it approved
6
7

because of COVID, the
two-and-a-half-years gap technically

8 cost us interest on money we borrowed
9 to purchase the building, plus taxes
10 and insurance generated a lot of
11 money.
12 And now, being that the project
13 is -- the project cost is that much
14 more, the interest rates, I don't
15 have tell you guys is skyrocketing.
16 So I sat down with the mortgage
17 broker, I said, "This is the project.
18 I'm in the middle of doing it.  I
19 want to start doing the numbers."
20 And then he got stuck by the
21 first line item:  Real estate taxes.
22 I hadn't realized what's going
23 to happen because, until we purchased
24 the building, it was assessed,
25 approximately, between County and
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a secret, but it almost jumped 25 to 
30 percent.  That's number one.
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4 the two old buildings since I had
5 since 2014.  I multiplied that to
6 24-unit, it made sense.
7 But then he said, "No, no, no,
8 this is not how it works.  If this is
9 going to be coming in as a new CFO

10 for 24 units, the numbers are going
11 to go up, and I don't think -- I
12 think you have a problem."
13 So then I asked around.  Like,
14 I know, in the City, they have some
15 tax programs, so I asked around, if
16 there's any here.
17 And there was a friend of mine
18 that was doing the Ridge Hill
19 development, and he said, "Of course
20 there is."
21 So he gives me the number.
22 "Sit back down and see what you
23 can do."
24 Then I realized that I should
25 have and would have come before that.
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City, at $46,000.  So in my mind, I 
made a number of what am I paying on
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2 I already paid a lot of taxes that
3 could have been saved on construction
4 costs.  So I told Jaime that that's
5 already passed.  I'm not getting that
6 back; I already paid for that.
7 But in order to save the
8 project without getting any kind of
9 tax benefits on this project,
10 technically speaking, I don't want to
11 say it, it was a waste.  It was a
12 waste of effort.  It was a waste of
13 time and money, because taking the
14 numbers that jumped, plus taking the
15 interest rates, nothing makes sense
16 anymore.
17 So we ran -- I ran the numbers
18 very briefly, what the benefits could
19 be.
20 I came back to the mortgage
21 broker, I gave him the numbers, and
22 he said, "Look, if you can save on
23 taxes, the project can be refinanced.
24 You're still going to have to stay
25 with a lot of money in there.  You're
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3
4 refinance it; you can still get your
5 moneys out as much as possible.
6 You're still going to stay with
7 something, but it's going to be
8 doable.  Without any tax benefits,
9 there's nothing I can help you with."

10 So all I'm asking for is you
11 see what I've done:  Took a vacant
12 building which did nothing for the
13 community, did nothing for the
14 street, did nothing for Yonkers, and
15 didn't pay taxes.  I put it into a
16 tax-paying building, I put it into
17 24 nice units, which is going to be
18 rented for people who live here.
19 We're not looking to bring in
20 anybody special from outside; it's
21 for people from here.
22 I gave her the numbers.
23 You can run the numbers.  It's
24 not -- nothing -- the numbers for
25 rent are not crazy.  It's -- I would
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not going to refinance the building the 
way you wanted to. But you can still
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3
4 took from buildings that are not as
5 nice as this one.
6 This is brand new.
7 I know what the numbers are on
8 non-brand new -- on buildings that
9 are not constructed now, and don't
10 have what this building is going to
11 offer.
12 The building is going to offer
13 a laundry room, all three floors
14 handicapped assessable, it's going to
15 be elevated, hot water in every
16 apartment.  It not like when the main
17 unit goes down, everybody doesn't
18 have hot water.  Everybody has their
19 own hot water tank.
20 And HVAC is also going to be
21 heating and cooling for each and
22 every apartment.
23 So what I feel, I'm not going
24 to say that I did something.  I still
25 own it, it's not like I gave somebody
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say, for this kind of -- meaning, to 
say the underwriting of the numbers I
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4 The building is paying taxes.
5 It's not like I'm asking for a
6 tax-free building.  The building has
7 a tax bill which is being paid
8 already since we bought it.
9 All I'm asking is to cap that
10 tax bill; it shouldn't jump up, and
11 I'm going to go out of nowhere.
12 It's not something that I -- I
13 have everything on paper, you can see
14 it, it's known to everybody what the
15 interest rates -- in fact, yesterday,
16 the interest rate jumped again.
17 MS. ANDERSON:  Let's try to get
18 some questions for the board.
19 Where are you guys at in terms
20 of completion, percentage-wise?
21 MR. BLUM:   I would say I'm at
22 75 percent right now.
23 And being honest with you, it's
24 a little bit stalled right now
25 because I have no idea where I'm
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something, but I think I did a lot 
for Yonkers, I would say.
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 going next, because I already see
3 that I'm not going to be able to
4 finish it up if not having a tax
5 benefit.
6 MR. CURTI:  So actually --
7 MS. ANDERSON:  Question?
8 MR. CURTI:  Yes, for the chair
9 to just ask a question.
10 So to stay on that point,
11 unless you refinance, you won't have
12 the money to finish the project; is
13 that what you're saying?
14 MR. BLUM:   Yes.  So the way I
15 look at it is, if I'm going to get
16 hurt, the answer is yes.  If I'm
17 going to have to leave a lot more
18 money in the project, the answer is
19 yes.
20 But I'm not going to be able to
21 leave that much money if there's no
22 tax benefit.  Meaning to say the bank
23 looks at income-reducing plus costs,
24 what they would give us is 69, 70
25 LTV.  If the tax bill is that much
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2 higher, I'm not going to get that
3 much from the bank, even if I have
4 to -- even with the money that I have
5 to.
6 MR. CURTI:  But you need those
7 funds in order to finish like, the
8 actual punch-list items that are
9 left, like, that 25 percent?

10 MR. BLUM:  That's correct.
11 MR. CURTI:  Okay.  Because --
12 MR. BLUM:   Then you say I
13 could push -- I could push the cost
14 towards later, meaning --
15 Look --
16 MR. CURTI:  Here's why I'm
17 asking the question, you know, just
18 to give an understanding what the
19 standard for the IDA is, but for us
20 giving you these benefits, you cannot
21 finish the project?
22 MR. BLUM:
23 MR. CURTI:

  That is correct.
  The second part is,

24 the IDA is also under the statute,
25 under A-59-A of the general municipal
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2 law.  It's not just -- but for -- but
3 if there is another reason why the
4 IDA can provide those benefits.
5 And so, you know, I think, you
6 know, what we've heard from you today
7 is that you took this property,
8 which, you know, was on the -- which
9 was on the exempt side of the tax

10 roll, and it is now on the non-exempt
11 size side of the tax roll.  You've
12 made improvements to the property to
13 maintain its character.
14 I mean, it's obviously been
15 there for quite some time, and so you
16 should be applauded, you know, for
17 those efforts.
18   Thank you.
19

MR. BLUM: 
MR. CURTI:  And so I think

20 these are some of the reasons that
21 the board can consider -- I mean,
22 obviously, we're just doing the
23 inducement resolution today.
24 The board is not bound by any
25 action.  We still have to do the
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3
4
5
6 the event it does want to authorize
7 the mortgage recording tax requested,
8 and also, the real property tax
9 abatement.

10 MR. BLUM:   So the way it works
11 is, if I know I have the tax benefit,
12 I underwrite the mortgage of what I'm
13 going to get from the bank with that
14 benefit, meaning to say if the
15 mortgage has to come in, taking into
16 consideration full taxes for this
17 building, the mortgage itself is
18 going to be probably a million
19 dollars less.
20 Even if I do, I'm still staying
21 with money in the project.  But if I
22 do get tax benefits, I get a million
23 dollars so I can finish the project.
24 Right now, we have open bills,
25 and I cannot move forward until I
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public hearing, we have to do the 
cost-benefit analysis.

But these are some of the
things that the board can consider in

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 REGULAR MEETING
2 know for a fact that I'm going to get
3 tax benefits.  I could refinance and
4 they did pay the rest of the bills.
5 I'm going to stay with open bills;
6 there's not a question about it.
7 MR. CURTI:  Okay.
8 MR. BLUM:   I just need to pay
9 the bills knowing, that I'm going to
10 be able to.
11 MR. CURTI:  Understood.  Thank
12 you.
13 ANDERSON:  Thank you,
14

MS. 
Mr. Blum.

15 Any questions from the board?
16 No questions?
17 MR. GJONAJ:  Yeah, I got a
18 question.
19 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, go ahead.
20 MR. GJONAJ:  Interest rates are
21 going up every day; they go up
22 another two times.  If you can't
23 afford it today, by the time you
24 refinance, we're going to have an
25 issue.
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2 MR. BLUM:  As I said, I'm
3 going to have to -- and I'm going to
4 leave in the project the funds that I
5 need to.  I'm going to choke myself.
6 I'll take out a line of credit.  I
7 don't know what I'm going to do.
8 But without the tax benefits, it's
9 killed as is.  With tax benefits, I

10 can go to a bank that -- yes, I'm
11 going to get it $200,000 up, $200,000
12 down; that won't kill it.  But I'm
13 over a million dollars off right now.
14 MS. ANDERSON:  So just a
15 question for Jaime or Mike.
16 So the financial part of him
17 having enough cash on hand to support
18 this going-out request, it's still
19 going to be a cost-benefit analysis
20 before we even move forward to
21 providing this, right?
22 MR. CURTI:  Yes.
23 MS. MCGILL:  Yes.
24 MS. ANDERSON:  This is just --
25 MS. MCGILL:  This is just the
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3 forward to even having the analysis
4 done.
5 MR. CURTI:  Right.
6 MS. ANDERSON:  So we may get to
7 a point where we may not approve
8 this.
9 MR. CURTI:  We're spending some
10 more time on this just because, you
11 know, typically, when the project
12 gets to our point, they haven't begun
13 construction.
14 This is a little unusual, so we
15 just want to make sure the record is
16 developed here so you have all the
17 information.
18 MR. CAVANAUGH:  The point is,
19 if this gentleman had come to the
20 board before the project began, we
21 would have induced it.  So we're not
22 really being asked to do something we
23 wouldn't normally do; it's just later
24 in the process.
25 MR. CURTI:  Right.
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2 MR. CAVANAUGH:  But he's got
3 some challenges.  But we will do that
4 independent report and lay it out for
5 the board.
6 I don't see a risk to the IDA
7 here.  I mean, the risk would be we
8 do nothing and the project doesn't
9 proceed.

10 MR. CURTI:  Right.
11 MR. CAVANAUGH:  That's
12 obviously not good to for the City.
13 MR. BLUM:   I already have my
14 punishment with not coming on time; I
15 already paid taxes on what I could
16 have saved if I had come on time.
17   Well, thank you,
18

MS. ANDERSON: 
Mr. Blum.

19 Would anyone like to make a
20 motion to approve the resolution.
21 MS. SINGER:  I will.
22 MS. ANDERSON:  Cecile made a
23 motion.
24 Seconded by?  Henry.
25 All in favor?
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 (A chorus of ayes.)
3 MS. ANDERSON:  Any negatives?
4 Hearing none, the item has been
5 passed.
6 Thank you, Mr. Blum.
7   Thank you so much.
8

MR. BLUM: 
Thank you.

9 MS. MCGILL:  Our next item is a
10 resolution authorizing the extension
11 of benefits for Extell Waterfront,
12 LLC.  We do have Janet Giris here
13 representing the project, Michael
14 Curti representing the transaction.
15 As Michael Curti will convey,
16 there is no additional benefit being
17 conveyed here; there is just the
18 alignment of the agreements with the
19 original intended construction
20 timeline.  But Michael Curti can
21 delve into that further.
22 MR. CURTI:  Yes, thank you.
23 The construction timeline is a
24 very lengthy one; it's 13 years.
25 There's buildings A through F, and
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 then there's the tower as well, that
3 needs to be constructed.
4 Right now, two of the buildings
5 are being built, but we just wanted
6 to align the sales tax letter along
7 with the understanding that it is
8 going to be quite some time before
9 most of the buildings are
10 constructed.
11 The request from the applicant
12 was April 2028; I think that's fair,
13 just given the length of time here
14 involved.  It also avoids a situation
15 where it expires, and we have to go
16 back and scramble.
17 So it's our recommendation to
18 approve this extension of time.
19 As Jaime indicated, no
20 financial assistance is being
21 provided, additional and above what
22 was previously approved.
23 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you,
24 Michael.
25 Any questions?
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 MS. SINGER:  Yes.
3 Do they have financing in place
4 that will allow them to extend it?
5 MR. CURTI:  Yes.
6 You have financing in place?
7 MS. GIRIS:  Sure.
8 For the record, Janet Giris,
9 law firm DelBello Donnellan
10 Weingarten Wise & Wiederkehr.  Thank
11 you for having me today.
12 So this project is being
13 constructed in phases.  The first
14 phase is buildings A and B, which are
15 currently under construction and are
16 anticipated to be finished
17 construction fairly soon.  They're
18 starting on the second phase of the
19 project, which is buildings E and F.
20 And yes, so they're financing
21 each phase individually.
22 And one of the reasons why
23 we're here now and that we weren't
24 here a little bit earlier is because
25 the finance CD, we spun that piece
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2
3
4
5 The sales tax letter under the
6 master project agreement, which was
7 signed in maybe 2019, had a short
8 period of approval.  And they
9 weren't -- their eyes weren't on that

10 because they were focused on the
11 first phase of the building.
12 Now they're focused on the
13 second phase.
14 And, you know, normally, we
15 would be here on an annual basis,
16 renewing that sales tax letter, but
17 because these phases are going to
18 take a couple of years each -- as
19 Michael said, there's a 13-year
20 construction period here.
21 The project, just to refresh
22 your recollection, is 1,395 units in
23 seven buildings, over a half a
24 billion dollars in investment in the
25 City of Yonkers, so that's were we
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3
4
5
6
7
8
9 MS. SINGER:  Because interest

10 rates, things have changed, and
11 there's a concern --
12 MS. GIRIS:  They are already
13 spending money on phase two, so they
14 are ready to pull that trigger.
15 MS. SINGER:  Thank you.
16 MS. GIRIS:  Thank you.
17 MS. ANDERSON:  Any other
18 questions for Janet?  No?
19 Thank you so much.
20 MS. GIRIS:  Thank you.
21 MS. ANDERSON:  Hearing no
22 questions, would anyone like to make
23 a motion to approve the resolution
24 for Extell?
25 Victor made a motion, seconded
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MS. SINGER:  Right.  But
there's no problems with financing?

MS. GIRIS:  Not to my 
knowledge, no.

So each phase will be financed 
individually --
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 by Cecile.
3 All in favor?
4 (A chorus of ayes.)
5 MS. ANDERSON:  Any negatives?
6 Hearing none, the item has been
7 passed.
8 So the next item on the agenda
9 is other business.
10 Anything, Michael?
11 MR. CURTI:  No, nothing.
12 MS. ANDERSON:  So there is no
13 other business.
14 Any legal updates?
15 MR. CURTI:  No legal updates.
16 MS. ANDERSON:  No legal updates
17 at this time.
18 Would anyone like to make a
19 motion to adjourn the meeting?
20 MR. DJONBALAJ:
21 MS. ANDERSON:

 Aye.
  Motion made by

22 Henry, seconded by Victor.
23 All in favor?
24 (A chorus of ayes.)
25 MS. ANDERSON:  Hearing no
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1 REGULAR MEETING
2 negatives, the meeting is adjourned.
3 Thank you guys for attending the
4 meeting.
5 We're going to go right over to
6 the YEDC.
7 (Time noted:  1:36 P.M.)
8
9 ° ° ° °
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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2 C E R T I F I C A T E
3
4 STATE OF NEW YORK )

:  SS.:
5 COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER  )
6
7
8 I, NATHAN DAVIS, a Notary Public for
9 and within the State of New York, do hereby

10 certify:
11 That the witness whose examination is
12 hereinbefore set forth was duly sworn and
13 that such examination is a true record of
14 the testimony given by that witness.
15 I further certify that I am not
16 related to any of the parties to this
17 action by blood or by marriage and that I
18 am in no way interested in the outcome of
19 this matter.
20 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto
21 set my hand this 31st day of July 2023.
22
23
24 <%24408,Signature%>

NATHAN DAVIS
25
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FINAL RESOLUTION 

(155 Elliot LLC Project) 

 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened 

in public session on September 28, 2023. 

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2023 - 18 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) ACKNOWLEDGING THE PUBLIC 

HEARING HELD BY THE AGENCY WITH RESPECT TO THE 155 ELLIOT 

LLC PROJECT, (ii) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 

AN AGENT, FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND PROJECT AGREEMENT, 

LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, TAX AGREEMENT, 

TAX AGREEMENT MORTGAGE AND RELATED DOCUMENTS; (iii) 

AUTHORIZING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE FORM OF (A) A REAL 

PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT STRUCTURED THROUGH A TAX 

AGREEMENT AND (B) A MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION AS 

PERMITTED BY NEW YORK STATE LAW; AND (iv) AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A MORTGAGE AND RELATED 

DOCUMENTS, IF REQUIRED   

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York (the “State”), as 

amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and 

power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 

constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 

by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, 155 ELLIOT LLC, for itself or an entity to be formed (the “Company”) has 

submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance 

with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition or retention of the land 

commonly known as 155 Elliott Avenue, City of Yonkers (Section 1, Block 127, Lots 40-44) (the 

“Land”); (ii) the construction, improving and equipping on the Land of a residential facility 

containing 24 market-rate residential rental units (consisting of 10 studio, 6 one-bedroom, 4 two-

bedroom and 4 three-bedroom units) and related improvements (the “Improvements”); (iii) the 

acquisition and installation in and around the Land and Improvements of certain items of 

equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment”, which together with the Land 

and Improvements are the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2023, the Agency adopted a resolution with respect to the Project: 

(i) accepting the Application of the Company, (ii) directing that a public hearing be held, and (iii) 

describing the Financial Assistance (as hereinafter defined) being contemplated by the Agency 

with respect to the Project; and 

DRAFT 
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WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency enter into an agent, financial assistance 

and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency will designate the Company as its agent for 

the purpose of constructing and equipping the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and 

enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback 

Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the 

Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the “Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold 

interest in the Land, the Improvements and personal property constituting the Project (once the 

Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if 

applicable have been negotiated), and (iv) provide “financial assistance”, as such term is defined 

in the Act, to the Company in the form of (a) mortgage recording tax exemption as permitted by 

State law, and (b) a partial real property tax abatement structured through the Tax Agreement 

(collectively the “Financial Assistance”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 859-a, on Tuesday, September 

26, 2023, at 3:00 p.m. local time, at the offices of Agency at 470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200, 

Yonkers, New York 10701, the Agency held a public hearing with respect to the Project and the 

proposed Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) whereat 

interested parties were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present 

their views.  A copy of the Notice of Public Hearing - published and forwarded to the affected 

taxing jurisdictions with Notice Letter at least ten (10) days prior to said Public Hearing - is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A, along with the Affidavit of Publication of The Journal News, and 

Minutes of the Public Hearing; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 

8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6 

N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617, as amended (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”), the Agency must satisfy 

the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA, as necessary, prior to making a final 

determination whether to undertake the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has or will obtain a mortgage loan or loans (collectively, the 

“Mortgage”) to finance all or a portion of the financing or re-financing of the costs of the Facility 

from a lender to be identified by the Company, which Mortgage will secure an aggregate principal 

amount of approximately $3,800,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested a mortgage recording tax exemption upon the 

recording of the Mortgage in the approximate amount of up to $55,500; and 

WHEREAS, the number of jobs to be created or maintained at the Facility are projected to 

be three (3) (1 full-time equivalent, 2 part-time equivalent). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Public Hearing held concerning the Project and the Financial 

Assistance was duly held in accordance with the Act, including, but not limited to, the giving of at 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2023-18 
Final Resolution – 155 Elliot LLC 
September 28, 2023 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 

 

Page 3 

least ten (10) days published notice of the Public Hearing (such notice also provided to the Chief 

Executive Officer of each affected tax jurisdiction), affording interested parties a reasonable 

opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views with respect to the Project. The 

Agency hereby determines that the Project is a “commercial” project under the Act, and that 

undertaking and providing financial assistance to the Project (i) will promote and maintain the job 

opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of the City of 

Yonkers and the State and improve their standard of living, (ii) will preserve the competitive 

position of the Project and will not result in the removal of an industrial, manufacturing or 

commercial plant of the Company or any occupant of the Project from one area of the State to 

another area of the State or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company 

or any occupant of the Project except as permitted by the Act, and (iii) is authorized by the Act 

and will be in furtherance of the policy of the State as set forth therein.   

Section 2. The Agency is hereby authorized to provide to the Company the Financial 

Assistance in the form of (a) a real property tax abatement structured through the Tax Agreement, 

and (b) a mortgage recording tax exemption for the Mortgage as permitted by New York State 

Law, except for an amount representing the “additional tax” imposed on each mortgage of real 

property situated within the state imposed by paragraph (a) of subdivision (2) of Section 253 of 

the Tax Law. 

Section 3. Subject to the Company executing an Agent Agreement (in a form to be 

approved by Counsel to the Agency and/or Transaction Counsel) and the delivery to the Agency 

of a binder, certificate or other evidence of liability insurance policy for the Project satisfactory to 

the Agency, the Agency hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition, 

construction and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as the true and lawful 

agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and equip the Project; (ii) to make, execute, 

acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and instructions, as the stated 

agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in whole or in part, to agents, 

subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and subagents and to such other parties 

as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things which may be requisite or proper for 

completing the Project, all with the same powers and the same validity that the Agency could do 

if acting in its own behalf; provided, however, the Agent Agreement shall expire on December 

31, 2024 (unless extended for good cause by the Executive Director of the Agency) if the Lease 

Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, Tax Agreement and Tax Agreement Mortgage contemplated 

have not been executed and delivered. 

Section 4.  The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 

and/or the CFO of the Agency the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to 

negotiate and enter into (A) the Agent Agreement, (B) the Lease Agreement, pursuant to which 

the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (C) the related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant to 

which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, and (D) the Tax 

Agreement and Tax Agreement Mortgage; provided, that, (i) the rental payments under the 

Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or 

related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the 

Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of the Tax 
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Agreement are consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”) or the 

procedures for deviation have been complied with. 

Section 5. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and/or the Secretary of 

the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute, deliver and record any 

mortgage, security agreement, UCC-1 Financing Statements and all documents reasonably 

contemplated by these resolutions or required by any reputable lender identified by the Company, 

up to a maximum principal amount necessary to refinance existing Company debt and to undertake 

the Project, acquire the Facility and/or finance or refinance the Facility or equipment and other 

personal property and related transactional costs (hereinafter, with the Agent Agreement, Lease 

Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, Tax Agreement and Tax Agreement Mortgage, collectively 

called the “Agency Documents”); and, where appropriate, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of 

the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the Agency Documents and to 

attest the same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Vice 

Chairman, Executive Director and/or the Secretary of the Agency shall approve, the execution 

thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and/or the Secretary of the Agency 

to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval; provided in all events recourse against the 

Agency is limited to the Agency’s interest in the Project. 

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 

to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 

and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 

the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 

resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 

of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

Section 7. The Agency hereby finds and determines that the Project is an Type “II” 

Action pursuant to SEQRA and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 

617.5(c)(2), as amended, and that no further action under SEQRA need be taken. 

Section 8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
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Date: September 28, 2023 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Marlyn Anderson   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Victor Gjonaj   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

  

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
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CERTIFICATION 
(155 Elliot LLC Project) 

 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 

 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 

Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 

September 28, 2023, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and 

correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the 

whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 

Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 

the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 

this __ day of September 2023. 

 

 

              

        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 

 

[SEAL] 
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EXHIBIT A 

 

Notice of Public Hearing 

Notice Letter 

Evidence of Mailing Notice Letter 

Affidavit of Publication of The Journal News 

Minutes of Public Hearing 

 

[Attached hereto] 
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a and Article 

18-A of the New York General Municipal Law will be held on September 26, 2023, at 3:00 p.m., 

local time, by the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) at the Agency’s 

offices at 470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200, Yonkers, New York 10701, in connection with the 

following matter: 

155 ELLIOT LLC, a New York limited liability company, for itself or on behalf of an 

entity to be formed (the “Company”), has submitted an application (the “Application”) to the 

Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) 

the acquisition or retention of the land commonly known as 155 Elliot Avenue, City of Yonkers 

(Section 1, Block 127, Lots 40-44) (the “Land”); (ii) the construction, improving and equipping 

on the Land of a residential facility containing 24 market-rate residential rental units (consisting 

of 10 studio, 6 one-bedroom, 4 two-bedroom and 4 three-bedroom units) and related improvements 

(the “Improvements”); (iii) the acquisition and installation in and around the Land and 

Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property (the 

“Equipment”, which together with the Land and Improvements are the “Facility”). 

The Agency will acquire (or retain) title to or a leasehold interest in the Facility as well as 

an interest in the Equipment and lease the Facility back to the Company.  The Company will 

operate the Facility during the term of the lease.  At the end of the lease term, the Company will 

purchase the Facility from the Agency, or if the Agency holds a leasehold interest, the leasehold 

interest will be terminated.  The Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance (the 

“Financial Assistance”) to the Company in the form of: (i) a partial real property tax abatement 

structure under a PILOT agreement and (ii) an exemption from mortgage recording tax upon the 

recording of a mortgage for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, furnishing and/or 

equipping of the Project. 

A representative of the Agency will be present at the above-stated time and place to present 

a copy of the Company's Application and hear and accept written and oral comments from all 

persons with views in favor of or opposed to or otherwise relevant to the proposed Financial 

Assistance. 

The Agency will provide access to the public hearing by broadcasting the public hearing 

in real time online at https://yonkersida.com/live-stream/. 

The Agency encourages all interested parties to submit written comments to the Agency, 

which will be included within the public hearing record.  Any written comments may be sent to 

City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency, 470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200, Yonkers, 

New York 10701, Attention: Executive Director and/or via email at info@yonkersida.com with 

the subject line being “155 Elliot LLC” no later than September 25, 2023. 

Dated: September 11, 2023    CITY OF YONKERS  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

https://yonkersida.com/live-stream/
mailto:info@yonkersida.com
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HAMPSHIRE MANAGEMENT COMPANY NUMBER 30 LLC 

1111 aka 1113 Central Park Ave 



 

 

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION 

(Hampshire Management Company Number 30, LLC Project)  

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in 

public session on September 28, 2023. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to 

wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2023 - 19 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF HAMPSHIRE 

MANAGEMENT COMPANY NUMBER 30, LLC WITH RESPECT TO A 

CERTAIN PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW) AND (ii) AUTHORIZING A 

PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 

(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 

and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 

constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 

by the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, HAMPSHIRE MANAGEMENT COMPANY NUMBER 30, LLC, for 

itself or an entity to be formed (the “Company”) has submitted an application (the “Application”) 

to the Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting 

of: (i) the acquisition or retention of approximately an approximately 1.95 acre parcel commonly 

known as 1111 (a/k/a 1113) Central Park Avenue (Section 5, Block 5425, Lots 98 and 100 and 

Section 5 Block 5453 Lot 50) (the “Land”); (ii) the construction, renovation, improving 

maintaining and equipping on the Land of a five story, approximately 160,600 square foot self-

storage facility (approximately 32,120 square feet per floor) along with office space, a 4-bay truck 

loading area, and parking for 24 vehicles (the “Improvements”); (iii) the acquisition and 

installation in and around the Land and Improvements of certain items of equipment and other 

tangible personal property (the “Equipment”, which together with the Land and Improvements are 

the “Facility”); and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing the 

Project, Facility, and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that the Agency is contemplating 

with respect to the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) negotiate 

and enter into an agent, financial assistance and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 

will designate the Company as its agent for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and equipping 

the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease 

Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax 

Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the 
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“Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements and 

personal property constituting the Project (once the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, 

Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if applicable) have 

been negotiated), and (iv) provide financial assistance (as that term is defined in the Act) to the 

Company in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 

acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, (b) a partial real property tax abatement 

structured through the Tax Agreement, and (c) an exemption of State of New York (“State”) and 

local mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Company has presented the Application in a form acceptable to the 

Agency.  Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's 

Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 

 

 (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 

powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 

 (B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; 

and 

 

 (C) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 

Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the City of Yonkers and otherwise 

furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and  

 

 (D) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or 

manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area 

of the State to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or 

facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; 

and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are 

relocating from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage 

the Project occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State 

and/or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in 

their respective industries. 

 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 

and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in 

compliance with the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) an Agent Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 

appoints the Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) a Lease Agreement, pursuant to 

which the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) a related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant 

to which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) a Tax Agreement, 

pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes for 

the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, (5) a Tax Agreement Mortgage, and (6) related Project 
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certificates, instruments, agreements, and documents; provided (i) the rental payments under the 

Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or 

related to the Project and Facility and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions 

taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of 

the Tax Agreement is consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or the 

procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with. 

 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in compliance 

with the Act. 

 

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 

to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 

and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 

the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 

resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 

of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 

Section 5. The Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Victor Gjonaj   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

 

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
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CERTIFICATION 

(The Hampshire Management Company Number 30, LLC Project) 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 

 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 

Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 

on September 28, 2023, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 

and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of 

the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 

Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 

the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 

this ____ day of September 2023. 

 

 

 

              

        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 
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AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

(Brooks Shopping Centers LLC Project – Sales Tax Benefits Extension) 

 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened 

on September 28, 2023. 

  

The following resolutions were duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

 

Resolution No. 09/2023 - 20 

 

AUTHORIZING (i) THE EXTENSION OF THE SALES TAX EXEMPTION  

BENEFITS PERIOD FOR THE BROOKS SHOPPING CENTERS LLC 

PROJECT AND (ii) AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 

ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED 

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 

(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power to own, 

lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and 

equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, by resolutions previously adopted by the Agency, the Agency appointed 

BROOKS SHOPPING CENTERS LLC the true and lawful agent of the Agency to undertake a 

certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (1) the acquisition of title to or a leasehold interest in 

an approximately 71.1-acre parcel of land bounded on the north by the Cross County Parkway, on 

the east by Kimball Avenue, on the South by Vredenburgh Avenue and on the west by Central 

Park Avenue and by NYS I-87 located in the City of Yonkers, Westchester County, New York 

(the “Land”) and the existing improvements located thereon consisting principally of (a) an 

approximately 1,000,000 square-foot open-air pedestrian retail shopping mall and related 

improvements (collectively, the “Mall”) and (b) an approximately 63,000 square-foot eight-story 

office building (the “Office Building”, and collectively with the Mall, the “Existing 

Improvements”); (2) the upgrading, reconstruction and renovation of the Existing Improvements 

including, but not limited to, the renovation of all portions of the Mall including common areas, 

façade, restrooms and retail space and general upgrades and improvements to the Office Building 

(collectively, the “Renovations”); (3) the construction and equipping of (a) approximately 254,375 

square feet of additional space adjacent to or as part of the Existing Improvements to accommodate 

the needs of current and new retail and restaurant tenants and occupants, (b) an approximately 

1,723-spot five-level parking structure and a one-level parking deck at the north end of the Project 

containing approximately 373 parking spaces, and (c) related on- and off-site traffic, utility and 

infrastructure improvements (collectively, the “Additions”, and together with the Renovations, the 

“Improvements”); and (4) the acquisition and installation in and around the Improvements of 

certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment”, and collectively 

with the Land, the Existing Improvements, and the Improvements, the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, the Project was granted site plan approval by the Yonkers Planning Board in 

December 2008, which site plan approval was extended through December 8, 2028; and 
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WHEREAS, although many of the Project components have been completed, construction 

is ongoing; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project and to effectuate the agent status of the 

Company, the Agency executed, among other things, a certain sales tax exemption package, as 

extended from time to time (as so extended, the “Sales Tax Exemption Package”) and an NYS 

Form ST-60, “IDA Appointment of Project Operator or Agent”, as extended from time to time and 

currently expiring December 31, 2023 (as so extended from time to time, the “NYS Form ST-60”); 

and 

WHEREAS, by letter dated July 17, 2023, and amended September 1, 2023 (as amended, 

the “Extension Request”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, the Company informed the Agency that 

construction of the remaining Project components would not be completed by December 31, 2023, 

and requested an extension of the Company’s status as agent of the Agency through December 31, 

2028, in order to continue utilizing the Agency’s “financial assistance” (as that term is defined in 

the Act), without which, the Company represents, it will not be able to complete the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has not requested a monetary increase to the financial 

assistance; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the successful completion of the Project, the Agency desires 

to grant the Extension Request and authorize the execution and delivery of a Sales Tax Exemption 

Package and NYS Form ST-60 expiring on December 31, 2028; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the 

Agency, to extend the agent status of the Company through December 31, 2028, and the Executive 

Director, President, Vice President, Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Secretary of the Agency are 

hereby authorized to execute and deliver a Sales Tax Exemption Package and NYS Form ST-60 

expiring December 31, 2028.  The Agency is further authorized to file the NYS Form ST-60 

expiring December 31, 2028, with New York State Tax Department’s IDA Unit. 

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore 

taken by the Chairperson, the Executive Director, and the staff of the Agency with respect to the 

matters contemplated by this resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to 

ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act and all other applicable laws that relate 

thereto. 

Section 3. The members, representatives, and agents of the Agency are hereby 

authorized and directed to take all actions deemed appropriate to effectuate the purposes of the 

foregoing resolutions including, negotiating and executing all agreements, instruments, 

certificates, documents, and instruments required by the Amendment and are hereby authorized 

and directed to execute and deliver such other agreements, instruments, certificates, documents 

and instruments, subject to the approval of counsel, and to do and cause to be done any and all acts 
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and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated by these resolutions, 

said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.  

Section 4. The Agency determines that the Amendment is a Type II Action pursuant 

to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted 

pursuant thereto at 6 NYCRR §617.5(c) (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”) and therefore no 

findings or determination of significance are required. 

Section 5. This resolution shall be effective immediately.  
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The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolutions was duly put to a vote on roll 

call, which resulted as follows: 

 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Marlyn Anderson   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Robert Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Victor Gjonaj   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

  

 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
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CERTIFICATION 
(Brooks Shopping Centers LLC Project – Sales Tax Benefits Extension) 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 

 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 

Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 

September 28, 2023, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and 

correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the 

whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 

Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 

the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 

this __ day of _________ 2023. 

 

 

              

        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 

 

[SEAL] 

  



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2023-20 
Authorizing Resolution - Brooks Shopping Centers LLC Project – Sales Tax Benefits Extension 
September 28, 2023 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 

 

Page 6 
 

EXHIBIT A 

(Attached) 



DELBELLO DONNELLAN WEINGARTEN 
WISE & WIEDERKEHR, LLP 

Janet J. Giris 
Partner 
jjg@ddw-law.com 

COUNSELLORS AT LAW 

THE GATEWAY BUILDING 
ONE NORTH LEXINGTON AVENUE 
WHITE PLAINS, NEW YORK 10601 

(914) 681-0200 
FACSIMILE (914) 684-0288 

Connecticut Office 
1111 SUMMER STREET 
STAMFORD, CT  06905 

(203) 298-0000 
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July 17, 2023 
(revised September 1, 2023) 

 
By Email 
 
Ms. Jaime McGill 
Executive Director 
Yonkers Industrial Development Agency 
470 Nepperhan Avenue – Suite 200 
Yonkers, New York 10701 
 

Re: City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency with Brooks Shopping 
Centers LLC. 

 
Dear Ms. McGill: 
 
 This firm represents Brooks Shopping Centers LLC (the “Company”) in connection with 
the above-referenced transaction for the property commonly known as the “Cross County 
Shopping Center” in the City of Yonkers (the “Shopping Center”). As you may remember, the 
Company and the Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) entered into a 
straight-lease transaction (the “Transaction”) on April 1, 2008 which was subsequently amended 
on December 30th, 2008 to facilitate: (i) the upgrading, reconstruction and renovation of the 
existing improvements at the Shopping Center including all common areas, facades, restrooms 
and retail space; (ii) the construction of a net increase of approximately 245,361 square feet of 
space to accommodate the needs of current and new retail and restaurant tenants and occupants; 
(iii) the construction of an approximately 1,405 space five (5) level parking structure and a two 
(2) level parking structure containing approximately 1,850 parking spaces; and (iv) related on- 
and off-site infrastructure, traffic and utility improvements (the “Project”). The Transaction is in 
effect through December 31, 2023.  
 

Site plan approval for the Project was granted by the Yonkers Planning Board in 
December, 2008, and was subsequently extended through and including December 8, 2028 (the 
“Approval”).  Although many of the Project components have been completed, construction at 
the Property is ongoing; under the Approval, approximately 139,000 net square feet of space 
remains to be constructed.   To date the Company has invested more than $200 Million in the 
Project; the Company anticipates that the cost of construction of the remaining Project 
components is approximately $83.5 Million. 
 



 
Ms. Jaime McGill, Executive Director  July 17, 2023 (revised September 1, 2023) 
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The Company does not anticipate completion of construction of all of the Project 

components prior to the expiration of the Transaction in December, 2023.  Accordingly, on 
behalf of the Company, we are writing to respectfully request that the Transaction be extended 
through December, 2028 to coincide with the expiration of the Approval so that the Company 
may continue to utilize sales and use tax exemptions for the remaining construction.1  The 
Agency’s assistance has been an integral part of the Project’s success to date, and the Agency’s 
continued assistance remains imperative to the Company’s ability to complete the Project; but 
for the Agency’s assistance, the Project could not be completed, especially given the ever-rising 
costs of construction which have substantially increased since the Project’s inception. 

 
 We respectfully request that this matter be placed on the next available agenda of the 
Agency for consideration of this request. In the interim, please feel free to contact me if you have 
any questions or if you would like any additional information. 
 
 Thank you for your consideration. 
 

       
cc: Michael Curti, Esq. Harris Beach, PLLC 
  
 
  

 

 
1 We note that the Company is not seeking an increase in the amount of sales and use tax benefit over the amount 
previously approved by the Agency, nor is it seeking an extension of the “First Amendment to Full Tax Agreement” 
which will expire on December 31, 2023. 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 

(Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap Allocation to YEDC) 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in 

public session on September 28, 2023. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to 

wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2023 - 21 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD ASSIGNMENT AS 

NEEDED OF ALL OR A PORTION OF ITS PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND 

VOLUME CAP ALLOCATION FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023 TO YONKERS 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 

(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 

and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 

constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 

by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency received private activity bond volume cap allocation from the 

State of New York for calendar year 2023, in the amount of $4,190,600 (the “2023 Volume Cap 

Allocation”); and 

WHEREAS, by correspondence dated March 8, 2023, YONKERS ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (the “Corporation”) made application to the Mid-Hudson 

Regional Economic Council (“Mid-Hudson Regional EDC”) for private activity bond volume cap 

allocation in the amount of $37,809,400 (the “Additional Volume Cap Allocation” and together 

with the 2023 Volume Cap Allocation, the “Maximum Volume Cap Allocation”); and 

WHEREAS, by correspondence dated May 25, 2023, Mid-Hudson Regional EDC 

approved the Additional Volume Cap Allocation; and 

WHEREAS, in order to assist in financing a certain eligible project, the Corporation is 

contemplating to issue its Tax-Exempt and Taxable Multi-family Housing Revenue Bonds or other 

debt obligations, the issuance of which is subject to, among other things availability of private 

activity bond volume cap allocation therefor; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution authorizing the 

assignment of all or a portion of the Agency’s 2023 Volume Cap Allocation at the discretion of 

the Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, or Secretary of the Agency to the 

Corporation to facilitate eligible projects of the Corporation. 
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 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Agency hereby authorizes and approves the assignment of all or a 

portion of the Agency’s Volume Cap to the Corporation, at the discretion of the Chairman, Vice 

Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary and/or the CFO of the Agency in an amount 

up to $4,190,600 (the “Assignment of Volume Cap”). 

 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 

and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver all such 

instruments and documents and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary to 

effectuate the Assignment of Volume Cap.  

 

Section 3. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 

to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 

and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 

the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 

resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 

of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 

Section 4. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Victor Gjonaj   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

 

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
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CERTIFICATION 

(Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap Allocation to YEDC) 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 

 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 

Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 

on September 28, 2023, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 

and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of 

the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 

Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 

the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 

this ____ day of September, 2023. 

 

 

              

        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 
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AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

(Miroza T3 LLC Project – Sales Tax Benefits Extension) 

 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened 

on September 28, 2023. 

  

The following resolutions were duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

 

Resolution No. 09/2023 - 23 

 

AUTHORIZING (i) THE EXTENSION OF THE SALES TAX EXEMPTION  

BENEFITS PERIOD FOR THE MIROZA T3 LLC PROJECT AND (ii) 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ANY AND ALL 

DOCUMENTS REQUIRED 

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 

(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power to own, 

lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and 

equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, by resolutions previously adopted by the Agency, the Agency appointed 

MIROZA T3 LLC the true and lawful agent of the Agency to undertake a certain project (the 

“Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition of approximately 2.95 acres of vacant land located 601 

Ridge Hill Boulevard (Section: 4, Block 4076, Lot 9) (the “Land”); (ii) the construction of a 14 

story, 225,000 square foot, 184 unit residential apartment building, of which 166 units shall be 

“market rate” housing units and 18 units shall be income restricted “affordable” units, along with 

related amenities (the “Improvements”); and (iii) the acquisition and installation in and around the 

Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property (the 

“Equipment”, and collectively with the Land, the Existing Improvements, and the Improvements, 

the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project and to effectuate the agent status of the 

Company, the Agency executed, among other things, a certain sales tax exemption package, as 

extended from time to time (as so extended, the “Sales Tax Exemption Package”) and an NYS 

Form ST-60, “IDA Appointment of Project Operator or Agent”, as extended from time to time and 

currently expiring June 30, 2023 (as so extended from time to time, the “NYS Form ST-60”); and 

WHEREAS, by letter dated September __, 2023 (the “Extension Request”), attached hereto 

as Exhibit A, the Company informed the Agency that construction of the remaining Project 

components has not been completed by December 31, 2023, due to construction and supply chain 

delays, and requested an extension of the Company’s status as agent of the Agency through 

December 31, 2024, in order to continue utilizing the Agency’s “financial assistance” (as that term 

is defined in the Act), without which, the Company represents, it will not be able to complete the 

Project; and 

DRAFT 
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WHEREAS, the Company has not requested a monetary increase to the financial 

assistance; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the successful completion of the Project, the Agency desires 

to grant the Extension Request and authorize the execution and delivery of a Sales Tax Exemption 

Package and NYS Form ST-60 expiring on December 31, 2024; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the 

Agency, to extend the agent status of the Company through December 31, 2024, and the Executive 

Director, President, Vice President, Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Secretary of the Agency are 

hereby authorized to execute and deliver a Sales Tax Exemption Package and NYS Form ST-60 

expiring December 31, 2024. The Agency is further authorized to file the NYS Form ST-60 

expiring December 31, 2024, with New York State Tax Department’s IDA Unit. 

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore 

taken by the Chairperson, the Executive Director, and the staff of the Agency with respect to the 

matters contemplated by this resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to 

ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act and all other applicable laws that relate 

thereto. 

Section 3. The members, representatives, and agents of the Agency are hereby 

authorized and directed to take all actions deemed appropriate to effectuate the purposes of the 

foregoing resolutions including, negotiating and executing all agreements, instruments, 

certificates, documents, and instruments required by the Amendment and are hereby authorized 

and directed to execute and deliver such other agreements, instruments, certificates, documents 

and instruments, subject to the approval of counsel, and to do and cause to be done any and all acts 

and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated by these resolutions, 

said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.  

Section 4. The Agency determines that the Amendment is a Type II Action pursuant 

to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted 

pursuant thereto at 6 NYCRR §617.5(c) (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”) and therefore no 

findings or determination of significance are required. 

Section 5. This resolution shall be effective immediately.  
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The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolutions was duly put to a vote on roll 

call, which resulted as follows: 

 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Marlyn Anderson   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Robert Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Victor Gjonaj   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

  

 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
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CERTIFICATION 
(Miroza T3 Project – Sales Tax Benefits Extension) 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 

 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 

Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 

September 28, 2023, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and 

correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the 

whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 

Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 

the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 

this __ day of _________ 2023. 

 

 

              

        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 

 

[SEAL] 
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EXHIBIT A 

(Attached) 
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